
  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us 

DATE: April 18, 2019 

TIME: 6:30 p.m. 

PLACE: 2nd Floor Committee Room 
 Lenawee County Courthouse 
 Adrian, Michigan 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Comment [3-MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of Agenda [ACTION] 

4. Meeting Minutes 

Approval of the Minutes of the March 21, 2019, 2019, Meeting [ACTION]  .......................................  3 

5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) 

(1) #19-03 — Rollin Township [ACTION]  .............................................................................  7 

(1) #19-04 — Woodstock Township [ACTION]  ..................................................................  19 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) 

(1) #19-12 — Ogden Township [ACTION]  ..........................................................................  35 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) — None 

6. Other Business 

a. Old Business 

(1) 2019 LCPC Annual Dinner [DISCUSSION] 

b. New Business — None 

7. Public Comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner Comment 

9. Adjournment 

 

 

 

The next meeting of the Lenawee County Planning Commission is scheduled for May 16, 2019 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 1 



This page is intentionally blank. 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 2 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, March 21, 2019 

Old Lenawee County Courthouse ● 2nd Floor Commission Chambers ● Adrian, Michigan 

 Members Present: Mr. Bob Behnke, Education Representative*; Ms. Karol (KZ) Bolton, Lenawee 
County Commission, Ms. Rebecca Liedel, LCPC Chair; Mr. Bruce Nickel; Mr. 
Ralph Tillotson, Lenawee County Commission; and Mr. Dale Witt 

 Members Absent: Mr. Keith Dersham, LCPC Secretary 

 Others Present: Mr. Grant Bauman, LCPC Staff/Recording Secretary 

Item 1 Call to order. The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Chair Liedel. Those in attend-
ance rose and joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item 2 Public comment. — None. 

Item 3 Approval of Agenda. Staff submitted the 03/21/19 meeting agenda for approval. 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Behnke, to approve the 
March 21, 2019, meeting agenda as printed. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 4 Approval of Minutes. Staff submitted the 2/21/19 meeting minutes for approval. 

A motion was made by Comm. Bolton, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to approve the February 
21, 2019, meeting minutes as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 5 Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation. 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s). 

(1) #19-02 | Riga Township. Commissioners reviewed proposed text amendments to 
the Riga Township Zoning Ordinance regarding ‘solar energy facilities’. Staff summa-
rized his report, advising Commissioners to recommend approval with comments of 
the text amendments to the Riga Twp. Board after a new public hearing is held by 
the Riga Twp. Planning Comm. (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Behnke, and seconded by Comm. Bolton, to recom-
mend approval with staff comments. The motion passed unanimously. 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s). 

(1) #19-05 | Medina Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement for a 
property located on Meridian Rd. (US-127) in Section 30 (T8S,R1E) of Medina Twp. 
Staff summarized his report, advising Commissioners to recommend approval with 
comments of the agreement to the Medina Twp. Board (see the staff report). 

                                                 
* Mr. Behnke left the meeting at 6:55 pm. 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 3 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
March 21, 2019, Meeting Minutes Page 2  
 

A motion was made by Comm. Nickel, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to recommend 
approval with staff comments. The motion passed unanimously. 

(2) #19-06 | Ogden Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement for a 
property located on Treat Hwy. and Weston Rd. in Section 18 (T8S,R4E) of Ogden 
Twp. Staff summarized his report, advising Commissioners to recommend approval 
with comments of the agreement to the Lenawee Co. Board (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Bolton, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to recom-
mend approval with staff comments. The motion passed unanimously. 

(3) #19-07 | Ridgeway Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for a property located on Centennial Rd. in Section 7 (T6S,R5E) of Ridgeway Twp. 
Staff summarized his report, advising Commissioners to recommend approval with 
comments of the agreement to the Ridgeway Twp. Board (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to recom-
mend approval with staff comments. The motion passed unanimously. 

(4) #19-08 | Ridgeway Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for a landlocked property located east of Britton Hwy. in Section 10 (T6S,R5E) of 
Ridgeway Twp. Staff summarized his report, advising Commissioners to recommend 
approval with comments of the agreement to the Ridgeway Twp. Board (see the staff 
report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Bolton, to recom-
mend approval with staff comments. The motion passed unanimously. 

(5) #19-09 | Ridgeway Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for a property located on Britton Hwy. in Section 10 (T6S,R5E) of Ridgeway Twp. Staff 
summarized his report, advising Commissioners to recommend approval with com-
ments of the agreement to the Ridgeway Twp. Board (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to recom-
mend approval with staff comments. The motion passed unanimously. 

(6) #19-10 | Ridgeway Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for a property located on Britton Hwy. in Section 9 (T6S,R5E) of Ridgeway Twp. Staff 
summarized his report, advising Commissioners to recommend approval with com-
ments of the agreement to the Ridgeway Twp. Board (see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to recom-
mend approval with staff comments. The motion passed unanimously. 

(7) #19-11 | Ridgeway Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement 
for properties located on Britton Hwy. and Centennial Rd. in Section 9 (T6S,R5E) of 
Ridgeway Twp. Staff summarized his report, advising Commissioners to recommend 
approval with comments of the agreement to the Ridgeway Twp. Board (see the staff 
report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Tillotson, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to recom-
mend approval with staff comments. The motion passed unanimously. 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s). — None. 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 4 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
March 21, 2019, Meeting Minutes Page 3  
 
Item 6 Other Business 

a. Old Business 

(1) 2019 LCPC Annual Dinner. Staff explained that the date of the event was post-
poned until June 20th in order to accommodate the Lenawee County Legislative Din-
ner scheduled for the end of May. The venue for the Annual Dinner will be Sienna 
Heights University. The ‘Taste of the South’ menu was selected for the meal, along 
with fruit and cheese displays for hors d'oeuvres. The Michigan Economic Develop-
ment Corporation’s (MEDC’s) Redevelopment Ready Communities (RRC) Program 
ultimately declined the invitation to speak because most of the communities attend-
ing the event would not be eligible for funding through that program. Staff will con-
tinue to exploring possible speakers from the MEDC’s Business Development and In-
dustrial Development programs. Comm. Bolton will also provide staff with contacts 
at the Michigan Association of Counties (MAC) and Michigan State University Exten-
sion (MSUE) regarding possible speakers. 

b. New Business — None. 

Item 7 Public Comment — None. 

Item 8 Commissioner Comment — None. 

Item 9 Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Grant E. Bauman, Recording Secretary 
 
 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 5 



This page is intentionally blank. 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 6 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-03 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: April 18, 2019 

 Proposal: Rezoning of property in Rollin Township 

Purpose 

The proposal is to rezone the subject property from ‘Single Family Residential (R-1)’ to ‘Local Commer-
cial (C-1)’ in order to allow a ‘bed and breakfast’ establishment (see the background information).1 

Location and Size of the Property 

Location – The subject property (RL0-660-3030-00) is located in the unincorporated village of Manitou 
Beach at 175 Walnut Street (south side), between Devils Lake Highway and Grove Street (see Figures 1, 
4a, 4b, and 4c), in Section 9 (T6S-R1E) of Rollin Township. 

Size – The subject parcel has an area of approximately 6,499 square feet (0.194 acres). 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – The subject property contains a vacant dwelling (see the background information). 
A restaurant is located on the northwest side of Walnut Street (see Figures 4b and 4c). Single family 
dwellings are adjacent to the east and south. A ‘retail’ establishment is located directly to the west. 

Future Land Use – Rollin Township’s future land use map places the subject property in a ‘Low Density 
Residential’ area, as are the other properties on the south side of Walnut Street. However, a ‘Mixed Use’ 
area is located on the north side of Walnut Street (see Figure 2). 

Current Zoning – The subject property is zoned ‘Single Family Residential (R-1)’ as are properties di-
rectly to the north, east, and south (see Figure 3). However, the northwest side of Walnut Street and the 
property located directly to the west are zoned ‘Local Commercial (C-1)’. 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Public Road/Street Access – Walnut Street (a county local roadway) provides direct access to the 
subject property (see Figure 1). 

Public Water and Sewer – Public sanitary sewer service is available (see the Rezoning Worksheet 
Form). However, pubic water service is not provided. 

Environmental Constraints – Staff is unaware of any environmental constraints. 

 

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change, making the proposed use impractical. All of the uses allowed under the proposed zoning 
are pertinent. 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 7 



Page 2 CZ #19-03 
 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Rollin Township Planning Commission 
recommends approval of the proposed rezoning (see the background information). 

CZC Staff Analysis – Rollin Township has a zoning plan which includes the following criteria upon 
which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

No. Although the Township’s Future Land Use Plan places the subject property in a ‘Low-Density 
Residential’ area, a ‘Mixed Use’ area is located on the north side of Walnut Street. However, the 
Zoning Plan does not equate the area to any existing zoning district. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. A ‘Local Commercial (C-1)’ district is already located directly to the west of the subject 
property and on the northwest side of Walnut Street. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. Existing public services and facilities should not be negatively impacted by the proposed re-
zoning to ‘C-1 (Local Commercial)’. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. The LCPC recommended the property located directly to the west (161 Walnut Street) for 
rezoning to ‘Local Commercial (C-1)’ at its January 19, 2017, meeting. 

A note in the staff report for the rezoning of 161 Walnut Street still applies: 

‘Local Commercial (C-1)’ zoning is already adjacent/nearby the subject property. However, a single 
property directly to the west of the subject property will remain zoned ‘R-1 (Single Family Residen-
tial)’. That property should be rezoned ‘C-1’ at some point in the future. The Township’s future land 
use map should also be amended to extend the ‘Mixed Use’ area located on the north side of Walnut 
Street southward. 

CZC Staff Recommendation – Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Planning Commission to rec-
ommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS of the proposed ‘Local Commercial (C-1)’ re-
zoning to the Rollin Township Board: 

 The remaining ‘Single Family Residential (R-1)’ property 
located to the west of the subject property, on the south 
side of Walnut Street, should be rezoned ‘C-1’ at some 
point in the future. 

 The Township’s future land use map should also be 
amended to extend the ‘Mixed Use’ area located on the 
north side of Walnut Street southward. 

 A ‘Mixed Use’ zoning district should also be created in 
order to fully implement the ‘Mixed Use’ area. 

  

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 8 



Page 3 CZ #19-03 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 2 
Township Future Land Use 

 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 9 



Page 4 CZ #19-03 
 

Figure 3 
Township Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 
Aerial Photo 

 

 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 10 



Page 5 CZ #19-03 
 

Figures 4b & 4c 
Google Photos 

 

 

 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 11 



LCPC Case ft :
(For LCPC Use Only ) ZONING AMENDMENT FORM

sssa

LENAWEE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Return to: Lenawee County Planning Commission •c/o Region 2 Planning Commission •120 W. Michigan Avenue •Jackson,Michigan 49201
Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with this form. Usea separateformfor each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requests in addition to the Parcel ID Number.

A copy of this form with the LCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk, who will return a copy to the LCPC with the Township Board Action.

TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the
THE
Lenawee County Planning Commission for its review, comment, and recommendation:
(ANSWER EITHER A or B)
A. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING):

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres, and the section(s) in which the
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing all changes and additions.)/7.-r uMLVvr s~ned 44253 (

0-i1. The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM
ZONE TO £- i ZONE.

0£0 f tftieckFMl2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:

B. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT:
The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered:
The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)

ARTICLE SECTION

C. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on: month
D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date: month

(Notice must be provided at least fifteen days prior to the public hearing.)
E. THE NEWSPAPER ( having general circulation in Township ) carrying the NOTICE:

The PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will beforwarded to the^owoship Btoard with a recommendation toK] APPROVE or Q DISAPPROVE.
Y [i Chair or Q Secretary &3 / &3 / %(?]$ (enter date)

day year

day /# year

Vfi/LH ftiejMib /Afrecb Wf

LENAWEE BOUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (LCPC) ACTION:
1. Date of Meeting: month day year
2. The LCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and:

I | Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change
I I Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter.
I I Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated in the attached letter.

Takes NO ACTION.

,Recording Secretary (enter date)
TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION:
1. Date of Meeting: month
2. The

day year
Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and thatthe proposed amendment PASSED, DID NOT PASS, or was Q REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission.

Township ClerkRevised: 11/19/18
4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 12 

gbauman
Typewriter
19    03



ROLLIN TOWNSHIP

LENAWEE COUNTY
MICHIGAN

REQUEST FOR ZONING CHANGE
OR

CONDITIONAL RE-ZONING

11XL ft 1DATE:

(xftl’fc/'Xb - - Sd-fteA (r 3- ltc .kt'

ns sr
NAME:

ADDRESS:

hM >TQ « fie*cU , rl.c-t, 4-^53

4-d 1 5 0' X l X lPHONE:

( 7&v\eA Q-glec-kj

Lo4 3, j)(,o 3 0 j fLd -r of Ton '3 c<̂ ^ ^
PROPERTY OWNER:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

LU*. PLti-hAccoftj -/t) -^ivO-

3^°^ I tW 'vt 't decoiLOf

W /y g; /2.10 - 303° - OQ

PC t* h-S

PRESENT ZONING:

REQUESTED ZONING: t’ /
PROPOSED USE: $ >& oft S- NtO 4 Room

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE:

0̂ \

FEE: $ 450.00

PLANNING COMMISSION CHAIRMAN

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 13 



H.I.I.- M -> - <«—
LCPC Case #:

(FortCPCUse Only)

LENAWEE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Return to: Lenawee County Planning Commission •c/o Region 2 Planning Commission •120 W. Michigan Avenue •Jackson,Michigan 49201
Please submit with the "Zoning Amendment Form"for a district boundary change (rezoning), not a text amendment

Township of:

Township official we may contact:

Applicant: _____
RezoningRequest: From:

Property Location: Section(s):

Township Case

uL Phone #: ( 5/7 ) %b - 62S?
Phone #: ( 4*// U5#

to

To:

Quarter Section(s): []NW []NE QSW QSE
Legal Description and/or Survey Map/Tax Map (please attach) Yes No (Please do not use only the Parcel ID Number)
Parcel Size (i/more than one parcel, label “A" - !T ):

i

ElYes NoPlease attachlocationmap

What is the existinguse of the site?

What is the proposeduse of the site?

What are the surroundinguses (e.g.: agriculture, single-family residential,highway commercial etc.)?
South: fs. ?A

East: West:
Whatare the surroundingZoningDistricts?

North: South: ]u
East: West: 1
What is the suggested use of the site on the Township's Land Use Plan map?
Is municipal water currently available? Yes 0 No

Is municipal sewer currently available? 0Yes No

Does the site have access to apublic street or road?

Are there any known environmental constraints on the site?

Wetland(s) Fioodplain(s) Brownfield(s) Soil(s) Other (p/ease specify)

Willitbe made available? [3 Yes No If yes,when?
Willitbe made available? Yes No If yes,when?

Yes 0No

Please attach theminutes of thePlanningCommission.
0Yes,the minutes are attached.
Please attach copies of any reports, exhibits or other documentedprovided to the Planning Commission.

Yes, copies of documentation are attached. No, copies of documentation are not attached.
Please attachany public comments,letters,or petitions.

Yes, public comments are attached.

No, the minutes are not attached.

No,public comments are not attached.

Please include any additional information or comments as an attachment
Revised: 11/19/18 4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 14 



ROLUN TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION

Regular meeting,March 19,2019,DRAFT Minutes

Meeting called to order by Chairperson Kapnick at 7 pm.
Pledge of Allegiance waived

Members Present: Pauline Brosamer, Jim Driskil!, Doug Kapnick, Nancy Nichols, absent: Michael Clark, Bruce
Walker waived

Approval of Minutes: February 12, 2019 Regular Meeting moved by Dixon,supported by Nichols to approve the
February 12 minutes, motion passed unanimously.

Communications/presentations:None

Appeals Board Report: None

Township Board Report: None

County Commissioner Report: None

Old Business:

1. Vacate Alleys: Mike Clark, absent no report
2. Draft Bed & Breakfast addition to the Roliin Zoning ordinance is on temporary hold by unanimous

agreement
3. Request to rezone 175 Walnut Street,Manitou Village from R-lto C-l:The commission discussed the

request in regard to health and safety issues and occupancy of the inn keeper during times that tenants
are in residence with the Galecki's. Moved by Drjskill, supported by Nichols to move the request forward
with tentative approval for changing the zoning fromRl-Cl. Roll call was called by the Chair and the
motion carried unanimously.

4. Roliin Planning Commission -Things to Do 2019 to be considered at next meeting, e

New Business:

1. Moved by Driskiil, supported by Nichois to accept the resignation of Bruce Walker with regret and
with appreciation for his service to the community through his work on the Roliin Township Planning
Commission, motion passed unanimously.

Commission Members Comments: None

Public Comment:None

Next Meeting: April 4, 2019

Adjournment: 8:05 pm

Respectively submitted,Nancy Nichols, acting secretary

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 15 



ROLLIN TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION

Special meeting,March 19,2019,DRAFT Minutes

I: Meetingcalled to order by Chairperson Kapnick at 6:45pm

II: Pledge of Allegiance

III: Members Present: Pauline Brosamer, Jim Driskill,Doug Kapnick, Nancy Nichols, absent: Michael Clark,Bruce
Walker

New Business:IV:

1. Amending Zoning Ordinance by adding Bed and Breakfast language is delayed
Consider rezoning175 Walnut Street,Manitou Village from R-lto C-lto allow a Bed & Breakfast2.

Commission Members Comments:Question regarding the lack of a bed and breakfast ordinance, and
questions regarding the operation of the request for the rezoning from R-lto C-3 were raised. Neighbors
were notified of this meeting.

V:

Vi: Public Comment: None

VII: Adjournment:7 pm

Respectively submitted,Nancy Nichols, acting secretary

i

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 16 



fEEI

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 17 



This page is intentionally blank. 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 18 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-04 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: April 18, 2019 

 Proposal: Rezoning of property in Woodstock Township 

Purpose 

The original proposal was to rezone the subject property from ‘General Commercial (C-2)’ to ‘General 
Industrial (I)’ in order to allow for an ‘automotive repair facility’, according to the applicant (see the 
background information).1  

Location and Size of the Property 

Location – The subject property (WD0-120-2350-00) is located at 17250 W. US-223 in Section 20 (T5S-
R1E) of Woodstock Township. The property is situated in the northeast corner of the intersection of US-
223 and Herold Highway (see Figures 1, 4a, 4b, and 4c) in Section 20 of Woodstock Township (T5S,R1E). 

Size – The subject property has an area of 2.23 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – Inland Marine & Powersports is currently located on the subject property (see Fig-
ure 4b). Another commercial parcel is located directly to the east. Surrounding properties are utilized for 
single-family residences (see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). 

Future Land Use – Woodstock Township’s future land use map places the subject property in an area 
recommended for ‘commercial’ uses which extends along the north side of US-223 from Herold Highway 
to the southeast (see Figure 2). 

Current Zoning – The subject property is currently zoned ‘General Commercial (C-2)’ along with a cou-
ple of parcels directly to the east (see Figure 3). Surrounding properties are zoned ‘Agricultural (AG)’. 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Public Road/Street Access – The subject property fronts US-223 (a part of the state trunkline sys-
tem), but is currently accessed from Herold Highway (a county local roadway) (see Figure 4b). 

Public Water and Sewer – Neither public sanitary sewer service or pubic water service is available. 
Nor are their plans to provide those services. 

Environmental Constraints – The Township’s planning commission chair informed staff that there 
was an oil spill on the subject property and that the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality 
(MDEQ) confirmed the contamination. 

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change, making the proposed use impractical. All of the uses allowed under the proposed zoning 
are pertinent. 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 19 



Page 2 CZ #19-04 
 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – There was opposition to rezoning the prop-
erty to ‘General Industrial (I)’ (see the background information). Accordingly, the Woodstock Township 
Planning Commission decided to consider rezoning the property to ‘Highway Service Commercial (C-3)’ 
instead. The change in the request permits ‘motor vehicle repair garages’ as a conditional use, which re-
quires site plan review. The Commission recommends approval of the rezoning to ‘C-3’ (see the back-
ground information). 

CZC Staff Analysis – Woodstock Township has a zoning plan which includes the following criteria upon 
which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

Yes. A rezoning to ‘Highway Service Commercial (C-3)’ is in agreement with the Future Land Use 
Plan which places the subject property on the edge of an area along US-223 recommended for 
‘Commercial’ uses (see Figure 2). Rezoning the property to ‘General Industrial (I)’ would not be 
consistent. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. A couple of nearby properties to the southeast are already zoned ‘Highway Service Com-
mercial (C-3)’. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. It is unlikely that public services or facilities will be negatively impacted by the proposed 
change in zoning. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. The subject property and the property directly to the east are already developed commer-
cially” (see Figure 4b). 

CZC Staff Analysis – Staff concurs that rezoning the property to ‘C-3’ rather than ‘I’ is preferable. The 
change conforms to the Future Land Use Plan and requires conditional use permit (and site plan) ap-
proval regarding ‘motor vehicle repair garages’ on the contaminated property. However, it is suggested 
that the Township’s attorney be consulted to ensure that the action taken by the Township’s planning 
commission meets the procedural requirements of the Michigan Zoning Enabling and the Township’s 
zoning ordinance. 

CZC Staff Recommendation – Based upon this analysis, staff ad-
vises the Lenawee County Planning Commission to recommend AP-
PROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the proposed ‘Highway Service Com-
mercial (C-3)’ rezoning to the Woodstock Township Board: 

 Consider consulting the Township’s attorney to ensure that 
the action taken by the Township’s planning commission 
meets the procedural requirements of the Michigan Zoning 
Enabling and the Township’s zoning ordinance. 

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 20 



Page 3 CZ #19-04 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Figure 2 
Township Future Land Use 

 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 21 



Page 4 CZ #19-04 
 

Figure 3 
Township Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 
Aerial Photo 

 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 22 



Page 5 CZ #19-04 
 

Figures 4b & 4c 
Google Photos 

 

 

 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 23 



LCPC Case #: _____-_____ 
(For LCPC Use Only) ZONING AMENDMENT FORM 

 
 LENAWEE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

(COORDINATING ZONING) 
Return to: Lenawee County Planning Commission � c/o Region 2 Planning Commission � 120 W. Michigan Avenue � Jackson, Michigan 49201 

Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with this form. Use 
a separate form for each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requests in addition to the Parcel ID Number. 

A copy of this form with the LCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk, who will return a copy to the LCPC with the Township Board Action. 

 

THE ______________________________ TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the 
Lenawee County Planning Commission for its review, comment, and recommendation: 

(ANSWER EITHER A or B) 

A. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING): 

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres, and the section(s) in which the 
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing all changes and additions.) 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

1. The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM  ____________________________________________________  

ZONE TO  ___________________________________________________________  ZONE. 

2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:  ________________________________________________________________________________  

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

B. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT: 

The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered:  ARTICLE  ______________________ SECTION  ____________________  

The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)  ________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

C. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on:    month __________    day __________    year __________ 

D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date:    month __________    day __________    year __________ 

(Notice must be provided at least fifteen days prior to the public hearing.) 

E. THE NEWSPAPER (having general circulation in Township) carrying the NOTICE: _____________________________________________  

The PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will be 

forwarded to the Township Board with a recommendation to  APPROVE or  DISAPPROVE. 

________________________________________  Chair or  Secretary ______ / ______ / ______ (enter date) 

LENAWEE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (LCPC) ACTION: 

1. Date of Meeting:    month _____________    day _____________    year ______________ 

2. The LCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and: 

 Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change 

 Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter. 

 Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated in the attached letter. 

 Takes NO ACTION. 

________________________________________, Recording Secretary ______ / ______ / ______ (enter date) 

TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION: 

1. Date of Meeting:    month _____________    day _____________    year ______________ 

2. The ____________________ Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that 

the proposed amendment  PASSED,  DID NOT PASS, or was  REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission. 

 

Township Clerk 
Revised: 11/19/18 

Woodstock

General Commercial (C-2)
General Industrial (I) Highway Service Commercial (C-3)

To allow and automotive repair facility

3                        26                     2019
3                       9                     2019

The Daily Telegram

x

19    04

---------------------------

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 24 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 25 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 26 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 27 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 28 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 29 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 30 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 31 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 32 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 33 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 34 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

PA 116 FARMLAND AGREEMENT | FA #19-12 

 Applicant(s): Caswell Place, LLC. 
2169 Cadmus Road 
Adrian, MI 49221 

 Meeting Date: April 18, 2019 

 Location: The subject properties (ID #OG0-121-3555-00 and ID #OG0-128-1050-00) are lo-
cated in Sections 21 and 28 of Ogden Township (T8S,R4E), on both sides of Ridge-
ville Road and on the east side of the intersection with Pence Highway (see Fig-
ure 1). 

 Description: The subject properties have a combined area of approximately 103 acres (102 
acres in GIS). Approximately 101 acres are in cultivation for cash crops. Roughly 
2 acres are accounted for in the ‘other’ category; the Corbin Drain bisects the 
northern property. There are no buildings; what appears to be the original farm-
stead was split off of the northern property (see Figures 3a & 3b). 

 Term: 30 years is the proposed term. 

 Future Land Use: The Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the subject proper-
ties in an area recommended for ‘Intensive Agricultural’ uses (see Figure 2). 

 Staff Comments: The application contains no errors/omissions which need to be addressed. 

Staff Advisement: Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Lenawee County Planning Commis-
sion to recommend APPROVAL of the PA 116 application to the Lenawee 
County Board. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the applicant. 

 
  

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 35 



Page 2 FA | #19-12 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2 
County Future Land Use 

 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 36 



Page 3 FA | #19-12 
 

Figure 3a 
Aerial Photograph 

 

Figure 3b 
Aerial Photograph 

 
 

4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 37 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 38 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 39 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 40 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 41 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 42 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 43 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 44 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 45 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 46 



4/18/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 47 




